Watertown Local Development Corporation

Regular Board Meeting 

Thursday, September 18, 2008

The Watertown Local Development Corporation held its regular meeting on Thursday, September 18, 2008 in the office of the WLDC, 82 Public Square, Watertown, New York.

MEMBERS PRESENT – Mayor Jeffrey Graham, James Fayle, Jennifer Huttemann-Kall, Jenna Cleaves, Mary Corriveau, Donald Alexander

MEMBERS EXCUSED – Mark Bellinger

OTHERS PRESENT – Donald Rutherford, Executive Director/CEO; Kim Taylor, Executive Assistant; James Heary, Legal Counsel; Christine Hoffman, City Planner; Rachel Hanley, Watertown Daily Times; WWNY TV7
CALL TO ORDER – President Graham called the meeting to order at 9:35 a.m.

MINUTES – A motion was made by Mrs. Corrvieau, seconded by Mrs. Huttemann-Kall to approve the minutes of August 21, 2008 with the corrections noted by Mrs. Huttemann-Kall.  Approved.

FINANCIAL REPORTS 

WLDC Reports – A motion was made by Mr. Fayle to approve the August 31, 2008 financial statements of the WLDC, seconded by Mrs. Cleaves.  Approved.

Public Square Developers – Mr. Rutherford stated the accounting of Public Square Developers will be transferred to Neighbors of Watertown within the next month; therefore these maybe the last statements presented to the board.  Mr. Rutherford stated a meeting was held with Gary Beasley, Joann White, Laurie Podvin, and Kim Taylor to discuss the transition to Neighbors of Watertown.
A motion was made by Mr. Fayle to approve the August 31, 2008 financial statements of the Public Square Developers, seconded by Mrs. Cleaves.  Approved.
August Loan Summary Report – Mr. Rutherford reviewed the delinquent accounts and stated that #22 has until the end of the month to bring the account current or will be turned over for legal action.

Riverview Plaza (498 Newell Street) is trying to obtain bank financing, the original bank financing put some requirements that were impossible for the client to meet.  Mr. Michael Treanor has been trying to get some banks to do participation but as a result of the banking crisis and the economic woes it has made it difficult to finance housing projects.
Mr. Treanor has requested the WLDC, JCIDA and DANC to fill the $600,000 gap in financing.  The WLDC has already committed $300,000.  Mr. Rutherford stated that he was hesitant
 about contributing more from the public sector.  Mr. Rutherford stated he would find out more information from the banking institutions and assist Mr. Treanor in working with the banks.  
Mr. Rutherford stated that the LDC will close the $200,000 loan with the Marcy LP by the end of the month.

Mr. Rutherford stated commitment letter from MJK Holdings, LLC.  has not been returned.
CORRESPONDENCE - None 
COMMITTES

Loan Reivew & Eligibility Committee – 

Current Applications, Inc. – Mr. Rutherford stated the Loan Review Committee did not meet this month, but stated there is a request from George Anderson, President of Current Applications, Inc.   Mr. Anderson is requesting a principal moratorium on the three loans with the WLDC for the months of October, November and December of this year.  Mr. Anderson stated that the business has experienced a loss of three weeks of production during the recent move, the loss of an ESD grant for their new building and the declining sales the company is experiencing this fall.
A motion was made by Mrs. Corriveau to approve a principal moratorium on all loans with Current Applications, Inc. for the months of October, November, and December with interest only payments, seconded by Mr. Fayle.  Counsel Heary stated that a letter be sent to Current Applications acknowledging the approval.  All others in favor Approved.
Microenterprise Loan Fund – Mr. Rutherford stated he has received inquires in regard to financing amount less than $25,000 for leasehold improvements.  Mr. Rutherford asked whether or not the board had any interest in creating a Microenterprise Loan Fund in an amount up to $25,000 which would not require bank participation.  

Mr. Alexander stated that the JCIDA has a micro fund and the JCIDA recommend the applicant complete training which is provided by the Small Business Development Center before funding is granted, it is a requirement.
Mrs. Huttemann-Kall stated that she agreed with Mr. Alexander that the SBDC training should be a requirement as well as 10% owner’s equity.

Mrs. Corriveau stated she would like to see criteria for the program before the board act on a new fund.    

Mr. Rutherford stated that at the next loan review committee meeting the members can outline a program and application process to go before the board at the October meeting.

Executive Director Activity Report – The board reviewed Mr. Rutherford’s activity report.

NEW BUSINESS

Marcy LP – A motion to approve a subordination agreement between the Marcy Limited Partnership (Borrower) and HSBC (Lender) and the WLDC, Neighbors of Watertown and the Development Authority of the North Country (Subordinate Lenders) and to authorize the executive director to execute the agreement was made by Mr. Fayle, seconded by Mr. Alexander.  Approved.

Counsel Heary stated that he represents HSBC and that Attorney Steve Haas has reviewed the subordination agreement and will be representing the WLDC in this matter.  
NYS Historic Credit – President Graham stated he received a request from Gary Beasley of Neighbors of Watertown that the City of Watertown write a letter to the Governor in support of the NYS Rehabilitation Tax Credit Program.  President Graham stated this is very important for both the Franklin Building and Woolworth projects.  

Mrs. Corriveau made a motion requesting the WLDC write a letter in support of the tax credit program, seconded by Mr. Alexander.  All in favor.  Approved.

OLD BUSINESS

Spec Building – Mr. Rutherford stated that a ribbon cutting ceremony will be held in the month of October at the spec building which is occupied by Current Applications.
Stone Street and Sherman Street Project – Mr. Rutherford stated NYS HHAP has reached an agreement with US HHS and the subordination has been granted and funding will be released.
Marketing Committee – Mr. Rutherford stated that at the last marketing committee, it was decided that a budget needed to be committed in order to go forward with the marketing plan.  The board of directors decided not to set a budget, therefore, Mr. Rutherford question how the board wanted to proceed with the WLDC downtown marketing effort.  Do we want to do this in phases? Promotional events?  Public investment?  Does the board want more input into the marketing efforts and to they want the marketing committee to continue?

Several board members commented as follows:
The board discussed who is it that we are marketing, who cares what we are marketing, local residents?  How do we get residents downtown, what are we promoting?

Should the LDC support the Downtown Business Association and help them promote downtown?  Mrs. Hoffman stated that the DBA does not have staff that they are all volunteers and they get burned out because it is always the same volunteers.
Mrs. Corriveau stated that the LDC should not be holding events or hosting events.  

Mr. Fayle stated we should provide an opportunity to business owners to get their input and request financial support.  
Mr. Fayle stated this is a long term effort and the committee needs to put more time into what we want to accomplish.

Mrs. Corriveau stated our market is the people who live and work in downtown and also Fort Drum.

Mrs. Hoffman passed out a new brochure that was created for the City of Watertown as a welcome packet for military families.

The WLDC is the economic development agency for the City of Watertown and we have a lot invested in the downtown with the Franklin Building and what is happening with the Arcade and eventually the Woolworth Building someone has to step up.

President Graham stated that Channel 7 should film the weather outside everyday, that there station is directly downtown.

Mrs. Hoffman discussed the Christmas Program which will be held on December 4, 2008 as a kickoff to holidays.

Mrs. Cleaves agreed to serve as chairman of the Marketing Committee.  Mrs. Corriveau stated that board members be notified of marketing meetings.  A meeting will be coordinated as soon as possible.
NEXT BOARD MEETING – The next loan review committee meeting will be held on Tuesday, October 7, 2008 and the board meeting will be held on Thursday, October 23, 2008.  

ADJOURNMENT – Mr. Fayle made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Mrs. Huttemann-Kall.  Approved. The meeting adjourned at 11:12 a.m.  
PAGE  
1

